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GOVERNORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

The Governors (who are also directors of the charity for the purposes of the Companies Act) present their annual
report together with the audited financial statements and Auditor's report of Woodchurch High School (the
academy and the group) for the year ended 31 August 2020. The Governors confirm that the Annual Report and
Financial Statements of the Academy and the group comply with the current statutory requirements, the
requirements of the academy and the group's governing document. The annual report serves the purposes of
both a governors' report and a directors' report under company law.

The Trust operates ajn academy for pupils aged 11 to 16 serving a catchment area in Wirral. It has a pupil
capacity of 1405 and had a roll of 1416 in the school census in spring 2020.

Structure, governance and management
a. Constitution

The academy is a charitable company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity.

The Academy is a company limited by guarantee and was incorporated in England and Wales (registered
number 07775671). The address of the registered office is Woodchurch Hugh School, Carr Bridge Road,
Woodchurch, Wirral, Merseyside, CH49 7NG.

The Academy was incorporated on 15th September 2611 and commenced trading on the 1st October 2012, The
company's memorandum and articles of association are the prlmary governing documents of the Academy.

The Governors of Woodchurch High School are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of
company law.

. i
The Academy has entered into a funding agreement with the Department for Education, which provides a
framework within which the Academy must operate. The principal object of the Academy is to advance, for the
public benefit, education in the United Kingdom by leading and developing a school offering a broad and varied
curriculum,

Details of the Governors who served during the yearyear, and to the date these accounts are approved are
included in the Reference and administrative details on page 1.

b. Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be
a member.

¢. Trustees' indemnities

The academy through its articles has indemnified its governors to the fullest extent permissible by law. During
the year, the academy also purchased and maintained liability insurance for its governors.

d. Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Governors

The management of the group and the academy is the responsibility of the Governors who are elected and co-
opted under the terms of the Memorandum of Association.
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GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Structure, governance and management (CONTINUED)

e. Policies adopted for the induction and training of Governors

The academy is governed by the governor board which delegates functions as appropriate to governor
committees. When the academy was formed it wag decided that the governors were authorised to sign the main
deeds, documents, reports and accounts on behalf of all directors. The trustees and governors exercise their
powers and functions with a view to fulfilling a largely strategic role in the running of the academy.

The members and governors who were in office at 31 August 2020 and served throughout the period are listed
on page 1. All governors are provided with copies of procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets, plans and other
documents that they will need to undertake their role as governor. Governors attend training courses as
appropriate.

f. Organisational structure

The management structure consists of four levels: the Members, the Governors, the Senior Leadership Team
and the various faculty teams. The aim of the management structure is to devolve responsibility and encourage
involvement in decision making at all levels. The Governors are responsible for setting general policy, adopting
an annual development plan including drivers and budget, monitoring the Academy by the use of budgets and
making major decisions about the direction, vision of the Academy, capital expenditure and senior staff
appointments. The Senior Leadership team is comprised of the Head Teacher, Assistant Head Teachers and
Business Manager. The Leadership Team control the Academy at a day to day level, implementing the policies
laid down by the Governors and the agreed Vision and Drivers.

g. Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The Senior Leadership Team are set strategic objectives and targets for the academic year, overseen by the
School Improvement Partner, Head Teacher and key Personnel Governors. Reviews take place throughout the
year and outcomes are shared with key Personnel Governors. Outcomes and impact inform the decisions
regarding pay and remuneration for the Senior Leadership Team.
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GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Structure, governance and management (CONTINUED)
h. Trade union facility time

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials during the year -
Full-time equivalent employee number -

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time ' Number of
employees
0% -
1%-50% -
51%-99% -
100% -
Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time £
Total cost of facility time -
Total pay bill . 8,329,754

Percentage of total pay bill spent on facility time - %

Paid trade union activities

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facility time - %
hours "

i. Related parties and other connected charities and organisations

The academy owns 100% of the ordinary share capital of Woodchurch High School Sports Complex Limited, a
company registered in England and Wales under company number 08110622.

Objectives and activities
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GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Objectives and activities (CONTINUED)

a. Objects and aims

The principal object and activity of the company is the operation of Woodchurch High School, to provide
education for pupils of different abilities between the ages of 11 and 16.

In accordance with the Funding Agreement made under section 482 of the Education Act 1996, as substituted by
the Education Act 2002, between the Secretary of State for Education and the Academy Trust, the Academy is
governed by the Governing Body which exercises its power and functions with a view to fulfilling a largely
strategic role in the running of the school. The Funding Agreement specifies the admission arrangements,
amongst other things, and that the curriculum, in substance, complies with statutory requirements.

The main objectives of the Academy during the period ended 31st August 2020 are summarised below:

. To ensure that every child enjoys the same high quality education in terms of resourcing, tuition and
care,;

. To raise aspirations and encourage ambition for all pupils;

. To raise the standard of educational achievement and progress of all pupils;

. To improve the effectiveness of the Academy by keeping the curriculum and organisational structure
under continual review;

. To provide value for money for the funds expended,; .

. To maintain close links with the community and build successful partnerships with other institutions;

J To conduct the Academy's business in accordance with the highest standards of integrity, probity and
openness.

Whole School Priorities for 2019-2020

1) Curriculum Planning Progress and Attainment
For all teaching staff to have a clear understanding of their curriculum intent and be consistent and effective in its
implementation, as specified by the T&L Handbook. For impact to be in line with subject targets,’leading to
whole-school targets being met.

- Subject Reviews and appraisal to show progress through the year, with ELPs at least amber in all areas.

2) Teaching and Learning

For all staff to embed policy and practice as outlined in the T&L Handbook, focusing specifically on

engagement and enquiry based learning, the development of vocabulary, oracy and responsive teaching.
- For teaching ELPs to demonstrate on-going improvement and all Subject Leader and Senior Leadership
ELPs to be at least amber.

3) Bebaviour and Attitudes
To maintain a calm, orderly environment in all areas of the school so that all staff and pupils feel safe and are
focused and ready for learning. For all staff to implement and maintain the school's behaviour expectations,
promoting the Code of Conduct and Successful Learning Criteria.
- The impact is a positive and respectful school culture, where behaviour, attendance, punctuality and
attainment meet expectations.

4) Personal Development, Character and Christian Values

For the school community to live out and experience our vision every day: 'let your light so shine before others
that they might see your good deeds and glorify our Father which is in heaven' (Matthew 5:16).

For all staff to model and promote our Christian Values, and develop a moral compass in our pupils that
motivates and guides their conduct.

All leaders to effectively demonstrate how the impact of the school's vision holistically infuses and shapes the
strategic and operational direction of the school.
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GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Objectives and activities (CONTINUED)

- This leads to innovative and imaginative practice, which helps pupils transform their lives.
- To achieve an outstanding SIAMS inspection.

5) Provision for Disadvantaged Pupils

For all staff to respond to the data headlines and contextual information produced in weekly progress meetings,
closing the gap for disadvantaged pupils and pupils with SEND, whilst increasing overall attainment in all
subjects and cohorts.

6) Business & Operations Management

To effectively support teaching and learning through the management of the school's operational functions,
covering the areas of Health and Safety Management, Finance, HR, Administration, Premises, Cleaning,
Catering and Sports Complex. Key areas of focus are a balanced and sustainable budget, compliance and the

ICT strategy.
b. Objectives, strategies and activities

The Academy's main strategy is to raise standards of achievement and progress through an unrelenting focus on
continuous improvement in all aspects of the organisation. The core purpose of the Academy is teaching and
learning; its people and resources are constantly measured by their contribution to the overall quality of teaching
and learning and therefore the standards achieved by its pupils.

Key activities which support the main strategic purpose of the organisation are:

. Robust quality assurance processes (Inspectionsi which are transparent and inform all subsequent
actions;
. To improve teaching further so that all is good or better by continuing to share the good practice that

exists, ensure that pupils are effectively involved in the learning in all lessons and ensuring teachers make
frequent checks on the extent to which'pupils understand their learning; -

. Secure use of data and tracking to measure progress and inform actions and intervention and to use this
to encourage even higher aspirations so that pupils achieve their full potential in all subjects;

. To improve and develop our Behaviour for Learning strategy and decrease the number of fixed term
exclusions and decrease the percentage of persistent absenteeism and other absenteeism;

. A constant review of Continuous Professional Development and training opportunities for staff;

. To continue to develop the Christian Ethos;

. A core structure which allows all staff and students to understand their role within the organisation and
also to ensure that lines of accountability are also clear;

. Structures to support the organisation and integration of all internal and external resources and support

available for both pupils and staff.

Equal Opportunities Policy

The governors recognise that equal opportunities should be an integral part of good practice within the
workplace. The Academy aims to establish equal opportunity in all areas of its activities including creating a
working environment in which the contribution and needs of all people are valued.
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GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Objectives and activities (CONTINUED)

¢. Public benefit

Inextricably linked to the main objectives of the Academy is the aim of contributing to the public. Through the
provision of a wide range of educational and other activities, the Academy aims to contribute considerable
benefit to the local community and to the community of the Chester Diocese. Over the last year, a sample of
such events has included the following:

. Wirral Music Service hosts its weekly tuition at the Academy during the weekend.

. A wide range of support, both curriculum and operational, for Church of England Primary Schools within
the Chester Diocese.

. The school's farm welcomes the local community, specialist and primary schools to participate in
horticultural and animal activities.

. Numerous community events are held, including school fairs and affiliation with the Rotary Club. The
enforced school closure has had an impact on such events.

. Local Primary and Special Schools are invited to participate in a variety of events being run by different
faculties such as Art, Science, and Drama. Some local schools used the sports fields to host their sports
days.

The Sports Complex provides a high quality sports facility for community groups and larger clubs to
provide a range of activities for local community participation.
. Our students have been involved with the community focused Archbishop of York Award.

Note - COVID-19 has had a significant impact on the delivery of the above public benefit.
During the pandemic, school was able to:

. Produce and provide visors to the local community, care homes and hospital
. Provide food parcels to our most vulnerable families through the ‘Magic Breakfast’ Scheme
. Provide laptop provision to our pupils

The Academy has given a high priority to providing public benefit to a cross section of the community, but
perhaps the greatest benefit that the Academy can offer is the provision of an education that maximises each
student's potential to develop principled, informed, open minded and become confident citizens who respect the
beliefs of others and who are determined to make a positive contribution to society.

The Governors have considered the impact of the public benefit requirement including the guidance issued by
the Charity Commission. The academy provides educational services to all children in the local area. The
trustees confirm that they have complied with their duty in section 4 of the Charities Act 2006 to have due regard
to the public benefit guidance provided by the Charities Commission.
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GOVERNORS"REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Strategic report
Achievements and performance

Examination results for 2019 -20 were as follows:

2019.20 — 63.4% of pupils achieved 5 standard passes, including English and Maths at GCSE (and equivalent).
37.3% of pupils achieved 5 Strong passes, including English and Maths at GCSE (and equivalent).

(2018.19 — 55.4% of pupils achieved 5 standard passes, including English and Maths at GCSE (and equivalent).
29.2% of pupils achieved 5 Strong passes, including English and Maths at GCSE (and equivalent).

To ensure that standards are continually raised, the Academy, Governing Body and the Senior Leadership team:

. Operate a robust quality assurance calendar which monitors the quality of teaching and learning;

. Is scrutinised and supported by an independent School Improvement Partner

J Is scrutinised, challenged and inspected by outstanding partner schools;

. Undertakes a rigorous review of assessment and attainment using RAISEONLINE, SISRA, and FFT to

measure the progress of pupils, paying particular regard to the achievement on entry and levels of
progress secured, particular emphasis on Pupil Premium Pupils.

During the enforced school closure, every effort was made to keep pupils learning from home. This was in the
form of online learning and work packs, Form Tutors and subject teachers kept in touch with pupils to check on
progress and school remained open for our Key Worker children. Relevant virus control measures were
implemented during the spring and summer terms and able staff were placed on a rota to support the continued,
successful operations of the school. .

Our safeguarding team identified any child that they considered to be vulnerable and developed strategies to
monitor their safety, wellbeing and weifare during school closure, if they are not attending school. This was in the
form of visits and telephone calls. Engagement with social workers and muiltidisciplinary teams continued and
virtual attendance at meetings took place.

During this period, a decision was made to move to a cloud based ICT educational platform to provide
collaborative learning with a focus on ‘live’ lessons being delivered through remote access. This work was
carried out during the enforced school closure and was ready to implement from September 2020 ensuring that
our pupils continued to learn from home, if necessary.

The financial and operations of the school continued throughout with staff working both from home and in school.
The Governor Body received all relevant reports and updates during the Summer Term and meetings were held
virtually.

Due to the loss of Trading Income, the Catering Staff and the Sports Complex Staff were furloughed during this
period.
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GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Achievements and performance (CONTINUED)

a. Key performance indicators

Group _

Incoming Resources 2020: £104 m 2019: £9.9m
Net income/expenditure for the year  2020: (£0.79m) 2019: (£0.93m)
Funds as at 31 August 2020:£212m 2019: £21.7m
Net current assets 2020: £2.6 m 2019: £2.5m
Cash generated from operations 2020: £0.369m 2019: £0.269m

The group's balance sheet remains in a strong position. The net assets of the grouup as at 31 August 2020 (as
represented by the funds) amounts to £21.2m (£21.7m in the previous year). There has been an excess of
expenditure over income in the year to 31 August 2020 which was expected due to increased expenditure on
depreciation charges in the year.

Key non-financial performance indicators

Attendance target = 2020 target 97%, actual 94.6% (2019 target 97%, actual 95.2%)
Exclusion target = 2020 target 4%, actual 3.53% (2019 target 4 %, actual = 3.91%)
Pupil numbers = 2020 target 1405, actual 1416 (2019 target 1405, actual 1415)
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GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Achievements and performance (CONTINUED)

b. Going concern

Financial Impact of Covid

During the enforced school closure, Woodchurch High School remained fully operational whilst supporting our
more vulnerable pupils with their continued learning alongside pupils of key workers. Pupils forced to isolate
were sent work home. School successfully functioned with Teaching and Support Staff on a rota basis and within
existing staffing levels, no agency supply staff was required.

To enable pupils to be able to access work online, the Google Classroom platform was rolled out across the
whole school during the summer term. GSuite for Education was implemented across the wider support areas of
the school to facilitate a whole school move to Google enabling significant advantages to support Teaching and
Learning.

Pupils entitled to free school meals were provided with supermarket vouchers and families suffering extreme
hardship where provided with food parcels. Due to the inability for the Edenred Scheme to meet our parents'
needs, supermarket vouchers continued to be issued weekly through both the Easter and Summer holidays as
did the food parcels. The cost of staffing this food distribution was absorbed by the school.

To ensure pupils returned to a safe and secure environment in September, the separation of year groups into
bubble areas was required. Movement around school is staggered to minimise year group mixing and both break
and lunch services have been modified to provide refreshments in the year group areas. Seating plans have
been prepared for each class to allow for an accurate and efficient track and trace system and this has .
effectively minimised the number of pupils that have to isolate due to a positive Covid test. Pupils who are
isolating attend live learning and join their fellow pupils in lessons as per their timetable online. Pupils in Year 11
attend an additional lesson, Period 6, at the end of each day to catch up for lost teaching time in 2020. Teachers
are paid additional time for this extra period.

Catering sales have suffered from the lack of a hot meal provision, however future development of Catering
Pods, an Orangery extension to the Learning Cafe and the appointment of a Catering Development Manager will
drive forward the marketing and introduction of a new and improved catering service. Pupils will remain in year
group bubbles, as this has been a positive and enjoyable experience for pupils, improving behaviour and
relationships and supporting the return to school.

To reduce risk of infection from Covid 19, signage and hand sanitiser units have been placed in key areas
around school, with extended housekeeping hours to clean high touch points on a continuous rotation.

The board of trustees has a reasonable expectation that the academy has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be
found in the Accountmg Policies.

The Headteacher, School Business Manager and key management personnel refer to the three-year rolling
budget when making all strategic decisions to ensure that plans are sustainable. This is particularly relevant at a
time when budgets remain stable but staffing and other costs are escalating.

The school is popular and heavily oversubscribed, allowing for fairly accurate long-term budget forecasting.
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GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Financial review
a. Reserves policy

Capital reserves policy:

The purpose of the policy is to consider that academies are expected to create reserves from their annual GAG
funding. The ESFA provide some Devolved Capital Funding to academies, albeit at a reduced level during their
first three years of occupation. The ESFA provides no other annual capital funding - current annua! amount is
approximately £27,000. As assets of new-build academies are usually purchased simultaneously, they reach the
need for replenishment simultaneously.

The governors of Woodchurch High School require a capital reserve to be created to fund future capital
expenditure. These are normally met via transfers from GAG funding or funded via unrestricted reserves. The
academy holds assets to fund planned capital expenditure over the next three years. As such, assets should be
invested to minimise risk.

Revenue reserves policy:

Academies are expected to hold contingency reserves from their annual GAG funding or other income. The
governors of Woodchurch High School require a revenue reserve to be created to fund expenditure related to
the School Development Plan, strategic long-term aims and developments.

The procedure of the academy is to carry forward a prudent level of resources designed to meet the long-term
cyclical needs of renewal and any other unforeseen contingencies, subject to any constraint on the level of
permitted resources that the ESFA may impose.

The actual leve! of reserves held as at 31 August 2020 is £21.2m (Including £3,353,612) of free reserves
compared to the Reserves Policy value of £2mil.

b. Investment policy

The academy's investment policy is as follows:

. To regularly monitor cash flow and current account balances to ensure immediate financial commitments
can be met (payroll and payment runs) and that the current account has adequate balances to meet
forthcoming commitments.

. To maintain a working balance of a minimum of £50,000 to respond to unexpected financial demands.

. The academy will normally seek to avoid its current account going overdrawn.

. The academy will identify funds surplus to immediate cash requirements and transfer to the Treasury
Account bearing a higher interest rate.

. Periodically (at least annually) review interest rates and compare with other investment opportunities.

. The academy's current policy is to only invest funds in risk-free and immediately assessable deposit
accounts.

. Any change in policy requires the approval of the trustees via the Business & Operations Committee.
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* GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
- FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

c. Principal risks and uncertainties

Falling pupil numbers are a principal risk for the academy. Pupil numbers and the impact on budget, planning
and outcomes continue to be carefully monitored by the academy. The senior leadership team meets to
determine a strategy to maintain our healthy roll numbers. The academy continues its aggressive marketing
campaigns including local paper advertising, primary magazines, bus advertisements and train station
advertisements. The academy is currently over-subscribed and the appeals are submitted each year.

Pupil premium funding has been identified as a principal risk faced by the academy. Pupil premium funding is
forecasted for future years, based on information from the ESFA. A budget plan is allocated and funding is
utilised for the purposes of provision. Staff are recruited within this budget to enable us to manage future
requirements in line with funding received. .

The budget monitoring process is ongoing throughout the year and known changes are addressed to reflect any
future impact.

d. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Governors have assessed the major risks to which the academy and the group is exposed, relating to
strategic,.reputational, operational, compliance, financial and curriculum risks. The governors are satisfied that
systems and procedures are in place to mitigate the exposure to major risks.

e. Deficit

! !

U . LY S
The pension fund was in deficit as at 31 August 2020 in the amount of £7,024,000 (2018.19: £6,864,000). This is
due to the Local Government Pension Fund deficit decreasing/increasing during the year to 31 August 2020. The
academy inherited a deficit on this pension.fund on conversion to academy status and the value of the deficit
according to the actuarial valuation at the year-end 31 August 2020 amounts to £7,024,000 (2019 : £6,864,000).
The liability is not expected to crystallise immediately and more information relating to the pension fund is
explained in Note 26 to the financial statements.

f. Principal funding

Most of the academy’s income is obtained from the Education Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) in the form of
recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the ESFA during
the year to 31 August 2020 and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the Statement of
Financial Activities.

Fundraising

The Academy had no fundraising activities requiring disclosure under the provisions of the Charities (Protection
and Social Investment) Act 2016.
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GOVERNORS' REPORT (dONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Plans for future periods

The main objectives of the Academy for the academic year 2020/2021 are summarised below:

1) Curriculum Planning, progress and attainment: addressing lost curriculum time
2) Teaching and Learning - responsive teaching and cultivating independence

3) Behaviour and Culture - in order to realise our Christian vision, values and cuiture
4) Christian Vision, Values and Ethos - Preparing for SIAMS

5) Business and Operations Management -To effectively support teaching and Iearmng through the
management of the school's operational functions.

Disclosure of information to auditor

Insofar as the Governors are aware:

. there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware, and
. that Governors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The Governors' report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Governors, as the
company directors, on 26 November 2020 . v ..
and signed on its behalf by:

Mr T Smith
Chair of Trustees
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Scope of responsibility

As Governors, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Woodchurch High School has an
effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As Governors, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook and
competency framework for governance.

The board of Governors has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Headteacher, as accounting officer,
for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management
and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between
Woodchurch High School and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reportlng to the
board of Governors any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Governors' report and in the
Statement of Governors' responsibilities. The board of Governors has formally met 5 times during the year.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the board of Governors was as follows:

Governor Meetings attended Out of a possible
Mr G Simpson 4 5
Mrs S Broderick 3 5
Mr M Brown 5 5
Dr T Baxter 4 5
Mrs S Cronin 3 5
Mr D Cumberland 5 5
Dr M Gilbertson 3 5
Mrs V Jones (Oldham) 5 5
Ms R Phillips, Accounting Officer and Head 5 5
Teacher

Canon E Renshaw MBE 3 5
Mr A Smith 5 5
Mr T Smith 5 5
Mrs P Roberts 4 5

The Governing Body has determined that it is able to convene on a termly basis and maintain effective oversight,
particularly as the Chair of the Board meets regularly with the Headtaecher to monitor progress and is kept
informed of any pertinent matters which may arise from time to time. Governors receive monthly reports relating
to the financial positions and, from time to time, arc provided with other relevant reports relating to matters at the
school. Email communications have continued to prove to be an effective way in which to keep Governors
informed between meetings. Governors are also encouraged to visit the school at any time to meet with the
Headteacher and other senior employees or simply to observe aspects of the school day.

The Business & Operations Committee is a sub-committee of the main board of governors. Its purpose is to
monitor Finance, Audit, Personnel, Operational Compliance and Health & Safety of the Academy and report to
the Governors. The meeting scheduled for 19.03.20 was cancelled due to COVID-19 and the enforced school
closure from 20.03.20

Attendance during the year at meetings was as follows:

Governor Meetings attended Out of a possible

Ms R Phillips 2
Mrs S Broderick

Mr M Brown

Mrs S Cronin

Dr M Gilbertson

Canon E Renshaw MBE
Mrs P Roberts

Mr T Smith

Mr A Smith

S NN =N
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Review of value for money

As accounting officer, the Headteacher has responsibility for ensuring that the academy delivers good value in
the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational
and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the academy’s use of its resources has provided good value for money
during each academic year, and reports to the board of Governors where value for money can be improved,
including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The accounting officer for the academy has delivered
improved vaiue for money during the year by:

J Improving educational results and outcomes

. Challenged recruitment/replacement of staff

. Led a robust and accountable appraisal system/policy including CPD

. Led a robust and accountable disciplinary system/policy

Improving outcomes for our pupils is our top priority. A measure of success is the proportion of Year 11 pupils
achieving 9-4 including English, Maths and Science. The use of our Pupil Premium Funding is tracked to ensure
pupils receive appropriate interventions.

Financial governance and oversight

The Academy is governed by a body of Governors drawn from staff, parents, the Local Authority and those
appointed by our partner, the Church of England. The Governing Body meets at least four times a year. It
approves the budget and reviews it throughout the year. It considers the Annual Report and Accounts, and
monitors audit points raised by the independent auditors. The Governing Body takes an active interest in
teaching and learning within the Academy, receiving updates on tracking data and holding the Senior Leadership
Team accountable for performance. More detailed financial oversight is supplied by the Business & Operations
Committee, which meets three times per year. This Committee reviews internal management accounts, and
receives termly internal audit reports prepared by the Internal Auditor. The Business & Operations Committee is
also responsible for the maintenance of the Academy's Risk Register, which it reviews at least annually, taking
into account changes in the wider political and economic climate. This helps direct the Academy's strategic
planning to avoid the waste of time, money and resources. The Governing Body is also supported by this
committee in helping to ensure that proper consideration has been given to recruiting, retaining, and rewarding
staff in order to offer the best possible opportunities to our pupils, while recognising the importance of staffing
costs as a proportion of the overall budget. The Committees operate in accordance with their Terms of
Reference.

Better purchasing - ensuring value for money

Contracts and services are regularly appraised and renegotiated when appropriate to ensure value for money.
The Academy takes advantage of consortia when appropriate, to obtain economies of scale. Individual budget
holders are held accountable for the use of their budgets, and are helped by an experienced Finance Officer in
sourcing best value. Tight monitoring of budgets is carried out and where applicable, spend is challenged, eg,

reprographics charges. The following examples within the year demonstrate value for money:

1) Reviewed ICT educational platform and re-built an independent network

2) Reviewed Microsoft Licences and challenged numbers, savings on FTE staff

3) Implemented a programme for LED conversion across the school buildings

4) Reviewed all contracts due for renewal and sourced best value i.e. RM, AHU's

5) Reduced external purchases by performing tasks in-house ie. buildings' maintenance, painting, plumbing
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Review of value for money (CONTINUED)

Maximising income generation

The Academy explores every opportunity to generate income through additional funding streams such as the
hire of the Academy facilities, attracting available grants, in-house catering and providing a traded service for
primary schools. However, due to COVID-19 and enforced school closure, lettings, in-house catering and Sports
Complex trading income has been significantly affected. Managing cash, the Academy Trust ensures that all
surplus cash balances are invested in interest bearing accounts to maximise interest earning potential.
Investment institutions are selected carefully to provide the most acceptable balance of return and risk.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of academy policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Woodchurch High School for the year 1
September 2019 to 31 August 2020 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to handle risk

The board of Governors has reviewed the key risks to which the academy is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of
Governors is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
academy's significant risks that has been in place for the year 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 and up to
the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the
board of Governors.

The risk and control framework
The academy’s system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information

and administrative procedures, including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability.
In particular, it includes:

. comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the board of Governors

. regular reviews by the Business and Operations Committee of reports which indicate financial
performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure
programmes

. setting targets to measure financial and other performance

. clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines

o _delegation of authority and segregation of duties;

identification and management of risks, via the Risk Register.
The Board of Governors has decided to employ Dominic lon as internal auditor.
The internal auditor’s role includes giving assurance on the Academy's financial position by performing a range

of checks. In particular the checks carried out in the current period included a full review and verification of the
trial balance and testing of the:
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

The risk and control framework (CONTINUED)

. payrol! systems
. purchase systems
. control accounts/bank reconciliation

¥
The Intérnal Audltor presents his fi fndmgs to the Business & Operations Committeé in the Spring and Summer
Terms (the Autumn Term being concerned with the annual external audit).

P .
o

In addition, the 1A provides independent assurance that:

- v ‘. 3 : *

. The financial responsibilities of the Governing Body are being properly discharged
* . Resources are managed in an efficient, economical and effective manner

. Sound systems of internal financial control are being maintained and

. Financial considerations are fully taken into account in reaching decisions

The Business & Operations Committee will consider the Internal Auditors findings,as part of its review of the
academy’s internal control system. The work carried out by the Internal Auditor will be designed to mitigate risks
and provide assurance to the external auditors.

This year due to revised statutory requirements within the Academies Financial Handbook, we engaged BDO to
provide a review of our Risk Management Framework and Strategy.This work was carried out in February 2020
and a draft findings report was produced. The report made five recommendations and these were discussed with
our Link Audit Governors and relevant changes are being proposed for Academic Year 2020.21.

On a semi-annual basis, the internal auditor reports to the board of Governors through the Business &
Operations committee on the operation of the systems of control and on the dis¢harge of the Governors'
financial responsibilities.

Review of effectiveness

As accounting officer, the Headteacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal
control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

. on discharge of the Board of Governors financial decisions to help the committee consider actions and
assess year on year progress

. the work of the internal auditor;

o the work of the external auditor;

. the financial management and governance self-assessment process;

. the work of the executive managers within the academy who have responsibility for the development and

maintenance of the internal control framework.

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the Business & Operations committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous
improvement of the system is in place.
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Governors and signed on their behalf by:

Mr T Smith
Chair of Trustees
Date: 2¢* NovawmBseS 2020
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STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As accounting officer of Woodchurch High School | have considered my responsibility to notify the academy
board of Governors and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and
non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the academy, under the funding agreement
in place between the academy and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had
due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2018.

[ confirm that | and the academy board of Governors are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of
all funds by the academy, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the
academy's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2019.

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement these will be notified to the board of

‘Governors and ESFA.
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STATEMENT OF GOVERNORS' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

The Governors (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Governors' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Governors to prepare financial statements for each financial. Under company law, the
Governors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and the charitable company and of their incoming resources and application of
resources, including their income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the
Governors are required to:

J select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2019 to 2020; -

. make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any materia! departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; . )

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the

group will continue in business.

The Governors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Group and the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Group and the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the .
Group and the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities.

The Governors are responsible for ensuring that in their conduct and operation the Group and the charitable
company apply financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good
financial management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been
applied for the purposes intended.

The Governors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the group's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination
of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Governors and signed on its behalf by:

/Gp QL

Mr T Smit
Chair of Trustees

-

Date: 26/11/2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT.ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
WOODCHURCH HIGH SCHOOL

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Woodchurch High School (the 'parent academy’) and its
subsidiaries (the 'Group') for the year ended 31 August 2020 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Activities, the Consolidated balance sheet; the Academy balance sheet, the Consolidated statement of
cash flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards
{United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities SORP 2019 and the
Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the parent academy's affairs as at 31 August
2020 and of the Group's incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and
expenditure for the year then ended;

° have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP
2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by the Education and Skills Funding
Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with'International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including the
Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the 1ISAs (UK) require us to
report to you where:

. the Governors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements
is not appropriate; or
. the Governors have not disclosed in the financial statements any ldentlf ed material uncertainties that may

cast significant doubt about the Group's or the parent academy's ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue. ,

k Page 23



v T S EO Y T T

ol ffc‘..,@g, e RN

dps TN R s
i&

w,“,‘,!i* k« %WOODCHURCH HIGH SCHOOLV
f’ﬁc 3 ' (A ompan il
y Ilmlted by guarantee) B iy 7
éi“’ ! }8’ "“'7' “35'{#‘ ,"i Yy 4] E f“ v( ﬂ ]

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
WOODCHURCH HIGH SCHOOL (CONTINUED)

Other information

The Governors are responsible far the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual report, other than the financial statements and our Auditor's report thereon. Other
information includes the Reference and administrative details, the Governors' report including the Strategic
report, and the Governance statement. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the Governors' Report including the Strategic Report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
. the Governors' Report and the Strategic Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal

requirements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Group and the parent academy and its environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Governors' Report
including the Strategic Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

. the parent academy has not kept adequate accounting records, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

. the parent academy financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
certain disclosures of Governors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

o we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
WOODCHURCH HIGH SCHOOL (CONTINUED)

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Governors' responsibilities statement, the Governors (who are also the directors of
the academy for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Governors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Governors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the parent
academy's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Governors either intend to liquidate the Group or the
parent academy or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's websnte at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part ‘of our
Auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the academy's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 116 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the academy's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the academy and its
members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

ety Sy
V Szulist (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of
Crowe UK. LLP

Statutory Auditor
3rd floor

The Lexicon
Mount Street
Manchester
M2 5NT

Date: 18th December 2020
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO
WOODCHURCH HIGH SCHOOL AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 10 March 2015 and further to the requirements of
the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to
2020, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed
and income received by Woodchurch High School during the year 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 have
been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities
which govern them.

This report is made solely to Woodchurch High School and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Woodchurch High School and
ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Woodchurch High School and ESFA, for
our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Woodchurch High School's accounting officer and the reporting
accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Woodchurch High School's funding agreement
with the Secretary of State for Education dated 8 August 2014 and the Academies Financial Handbook, extant
from 1 September 2019, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the
purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by
ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
academy's income and expenditure.
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO
WOODCHURCH HIGH SCHOOL AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED)

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them.

ety 254

V Szulist
Crowe U.K. LLP

Statutory Auditor

3rd floor
The Lexicon
Mount Street
Manchester
M2 SNT

Date: 18th December 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND
EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2020 2020 2020 2020 2019
Note £ £ £ £ £
INCOME FROM:
Donations and capital
grants 3 972 - 27,844 28,816 100,860
Charitable activities - 9,851,542 - 9,851,542 9,116,292
Other trading activities 470,402 - - 470,402 634,248
Investments 6 13,914 . - 13,914 21,751
TOTAL INCOME 485,288 9,851,542 27,844 10,364,674 9,873,151
EXPENDITURE ON:
Charitable activities 8 512,297 10,009,741 638,755 11,160,793 10,803,117
TOTAL
EXPENDITURE 512,297 10,009,741 638,755 11,160,793 10,803,117
NET EXPENDITURE (27,009) (158,199) (610,911) (796,119) (929,966)
Transfers between ‘
funds 22 - (306,955) 306,955 - -
NET MOVEMENT IN
FUNDS BEFORE
OTHER
RECOGNISED
GAINS/{LOSSES) (27,009) (465,154) (303,956) (796,119) (929,966)
OTHER
RECOGNISED
GAINS/(LOSSES):
Actuarial gains/(losses)
on defined benefit
pension schemes 30 - 332,000 - 332,000 (2,122,000)
N oG CMENT IN (27,009)  (133,154)  (303,956) (464,119)  (3,051,966)
RECONCILIATION OF
FUNDS:
Total funds brought
forward 3,382,071 (5,780,080) 24,083,590 21,685,581 24,737,547
Net movement in funds (27,009) (133,154) (303,956) (464,119)  (3,051,966)
TOTAL FUNDS '
CARRIED FORWARD 3,355,062 (5,913,234) 23,779,634 21,221,462 21,685,581
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND
EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT) (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

The Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year,

The notes on pages 35 to 67 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2020

FIXED ASSETS

Tangible assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Stocks
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Note

14

17
18

2020

25,931,309

25,931,309

7,036
402,051
2,829,271

3,238,358

Creditors: amounts falling due within one

year

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT

LIABILITIES

19

Creditors: amounts falling due after more

than one year

20

NET ASSETS EXCLUDING PENSION

LIABILITY

Defined benefit pension scheme liability 30

TOTAL NET ASSETS

(662,628)

2,575,730

28,507,039

(261,577)

28,245,462

(7,024,000)

21,221,462

4,990
224,865
2,755,654

2,985,509

(489,883)

2019

26,301,912

26,301,912

2,495,626

28,797,538

(247,957)

28,549,581

(6,864,000)

21,685,581
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WOODCHURCH HIGH SCHOOL

REGISTERED NUMBER 07775671
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2020
2020 2019
Note £ £
FUNDS OF THE ACADEMY
Restricted funds:
Fixed asset funds 22 23,779,634 24,083,590
Restricted income funds 22 1,110,766 1,083,920
Restricted funds excluding pension liability 22 24,890,400 25,167,510
Pension reserve 22 (7,024,000) (6,864,000)
Total restricted funds 22 17,866,400 18,303,510
22 3,355,062 3,382,071

Unrestricted income funds

TOTAL FUNDS

21,221,462 21,685,581

The financial statements on pages 28 to 67 were approved and authorised for issue by the Governors and are

signed on their behalf, by:
Aown Ll
MrT Smi&h)

Chair of Governors
Date: No\/orw\avr 21027

The notes on pages 35 to 67 form part of these financial statements.
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ACADEMY BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 AUGUST 2020

FIXED ASSETS

Tangible assets
Investments

CURRENT ASSETS

Stocks
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS EXCLUDING PENSION
LIABILITY '

Defined benefit pension scheme liability

TOTAL NET ASSETS

Note

14
15

17
18

19

30

2020
£
23,779,634
1
23,779,635
7,036
392,139
2,631,467
3,030,642
(678,284)
2,352,358
26,131,993
26,131,993
(7,024,000)

19,107,993

2019

£

24,083,587

1

24,083,588
4,990
216,473
2,577,348
2,798,811
(524,932)

2,273,879

{ " 26,357,467

26,357,467

(6,864,000)

19,493,467
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ACADEMY BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

AS AT 31 AUGUST 2020

FUNDS OF THE ACADEMY
Restricted funds:

Fixed asset funds
Restricted income funds

Restricted funds excluding pension liability

Pension reserve

Total restricted funds
Unrestricted income funds

General funds
Total unrestricted income funds

TOTAL FUNDS

Note

22
22

22
22

22

22

22

2020
£
23,779,630
1,110,767
24,890,397
(7,024,000)
17,866,397
1,241,596
1,241,596

19,107,993

24,083,590
1,083,920

25,167,510

(6,864,000)

1,189,957

2019

18,303,510

1,189,957

19,493,467

The financial statements on pages 28 to 67 were approved and authorised for issue by the Governors and are

signed on their behalf, by:

Mréf\:’b SW\%

Chair of Governors
Date: 26 Novemboer 2020

The notes on pages 35 to 67 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

2020 2019
. Note £ £
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net cash provided by operating activities 24 368,542 269,221
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 25 (294,925) (40,104)
CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS IN THE YEAR 73,617 229,117
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,755,654 2,626,537
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR - 26,27 2,829,271 2,755,654

The notes on pages 35 to 67 form part of these financial statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
"FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,
except where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

1.1 Basis of preparation of ﬁnancial statements

The financial statements of the academy, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities:
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charmes preparing their accounts in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of lreland (FRS 102)
(Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2079 to 2020 issued by ESFA, the
Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

The' Consolidated statement of financial activites (SOFA) and Consolidated balance sheet
consolidate the fi nanmal statements of the academy and its subsidiary undertaking. The resuits of the
subsidiary are consolidated on a line by line basis.

The academy has taken advantage of the exemption allowed under section 408 of the Companies
Act 2006 and has not presented its own Statement of financial activities in these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.2 Going concern

The Governors assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the academy to continue as a going concern. The Governors make this assessment in respect of a
period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and
have concluded that the academy has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the academy's ability to continue
as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing
the financial statements.

Financial Impact of Covid

During the enforced schoo! closure, Woodchurch High School remained fully operational whilst
supporting our more vulnerable pupils with their continued learning alongside pupils of key workers.
Pupils forced to isolate were sent work home. School successfully functioned with Teaching and
Support Staff on a rota basis and within existing staffing levels, no agency supply staff was required.

To enable pupils to be able to access work online, the Google Classroom platform was rolled out
across the whole school during the summer term. GSuite for Education was implemented across the
wider support areas of the school to facilitate a whole school move to Google enabling significant
advantages to support Teaching and Learning.

Pupils entitled to free school meals were provided with supermarket vouchers and families suffering
extreme hardship where provided with food parcels. Due to the inability for the Edenred Scheme to
meet our parents’ needs, supermarket vouchers continued to be issued weekly through both the
Easter and Summer holidays as did the food parcels. The cost of staffing this food distribution was
absorbed by the school.

To ensure pupils returned to a safe and secure environment in September, the separation of year
groups into bubble areas was required. Movement around school is staggered to minimise year
group mixing and both break and lunch services have been modified to provide refreshments in the
year group areas. Seating plans have been prepared for each class to allow for an accurate and
efficiént track and trace system and this has effectively minimised the number of pupils that have to
isolate due to a positive Covid test. Pupils who are isolating attend live learning and join their fellow
pupils in lessons as per their timetable online. Pupils in Year 11 attend an additional lesson, Period 6,
at the end of each day to catch up for lost teaching time in 2020. Teachers are paid additional time
for this extra period.

Catering sales have suffered from the lack of a hot meal provision, however future development of
Catering Pods, an Orangery extension to the Learning Cafe and the appointment of a Catering
Development Manager will drive forward the marketing and introduction of a new and improved
catering service. Pupils will remain in year group bubbles, as this has been a positive and enjoyable
experience for pupils, improving behaviour and relationships and supporting the return to school.

To reduce risk of infection from Covid 19, signage and hand sanitiser units have been placéd in key
areas around school, with extended housekeeping hours t6 clean high touch points on a continuous
rotation.

The board of trustees has a reasonable expectation that the academy has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR'ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.2 Going concern (CONTINUED)

The Headteacher, School Business Manager and key management personnel refer to the three-year
rolling budget when making all strategic decisions to ensure that plans are sustainable. This is
particularly relevant at a time when budgets remain stable but staffing and other costs are escalating.

The school is popular and .heavily oversubscribed, allowing for fairly accurate long-term budget
forecasting.

1.3 Income

Al incoming resources are récognised when the Group has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

¢ Grants
Grants are mcluded in the Consolidated statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The
balance of income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the
relevant funds on the Balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any
performance-related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its
recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related
conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Consolidated statement of financial activities in the
year for which it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and
recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entittement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on
which they are expended.

« Donations .
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

¢ Otherincome
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the extent
the Group has provided the goods or services.

1.4 Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit
to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and
the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs
of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly
to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are
not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with
the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation
charges allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

14

1.5

1.6

1.7

Expenditure (CONTINUED)

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the Group's educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the Group apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
Basis of consolidation

The financial statements consolidate the accounts of Woodchurch High School and its subsidiary
undertaking.

The academy has taken advantage of the exemption contained within section 408 of the Companies
Act 2006 not to present its own income and expenditure account.

The income and expenditure account for the year dealt with in the accounts of the academy was a
loss of £718,923 (2019: £828,978).

Interest receivable

Iinterest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be measured
reliably by the Group; this is normally upon notification of the interest paid or payable by the institution
with whom the funds are deposited.

Taxation

The academy is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act
2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the academy is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section
256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are
applied exclusively to charitable purposes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL'STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.8 Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance sheet at cost and depreciated
over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding
requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset
fund in the Consolidated statement of financial activities and carried forward in the Balance sheet.
Depreciation on .the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the
Consolidated statement of financial activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with
unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to
write off the cost of each asset over its expected useful life, as follows:

Depreciation is provided on the following bases:

Freehold property . -.2% straight line
Fixtures & fittings LED lighting - 5% straight line
Fixtures & fittings - 25% straight line
Computer equipment - 33.3% straight line
Motor vehicles - 25% reducing balance

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Consolidated statement of financial activities.

1.9 Investments
Fixed asset investments are a form of financial instrument and are initially recognised at their
transaction cost and subsequently measured at fair value at the Balance sheet date, unless the value
cannot be measured reliably in which case it is measured at cost less impairment. Investment gains
and losses, whether realised or unrealised, are combined and presented as ‘Gains/(Losses) on
investments' in the Consolidated statement of financial activities.
Investments in subsidiaries are valued at cost less provision for impairment.

1.10 Stocks

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making due allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving stocks. Cost includes all direct costs and an appropriate proportion of fixed
and variable overheads.

1.11 Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.12 Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short maturity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.

1.13 Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit wilt be required in settiement, and the amount
of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Group
anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the
goods or services it must provide.

1.14 Financial instruments

The Group only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the Group and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 18. Prepayments are not financial instruments.
Amounts due to the academy's wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in notes 19 and 20. Taxation and social security are not
included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a
financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver
services rather than cash or another financial instrument. Amounts due to the academy's wholly
owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- FOR THE YEAR ENDED'31 AUGUST 2020

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.15 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the Group are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme (‘LGPS"). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees working lives with the Group in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded muiti-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recogmsed in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded muiti- employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
Group in separate trustee administered funds Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value
and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at each Balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the
current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Consolidated statement of financial activities and
comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme
assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by
the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the
scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains
and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
1.16 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Group at the discretion of the Governors.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specnf iC purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Investment income, gains and losses are allocated to the appropriate fund.
1.17 Employee termination benefits

Termination payments are recognised as soon as the academy is aware of the obligation to make the
payment,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual resuits. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 30, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31
August 2020. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.
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INCOME FROM DONATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS

Restricted
Unrestricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds
2020 2020 2020
£ £ £
Donations 972 - 972
Capital grants - 27,844 27,844
TOTAL 2020 972 27,844 28,816
Restricted

Unrestricted  fixed asset Total
funds funds funds
2019 2019 2019
£ £ £
Donations 1,696 - 1,696
Capital grants - 99,164 99,164
TOTAL 2019 1,696 99,164 100,860

FUNDING FOR ACADEMY'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS
Restricted Total
funds funds
2020 2020
£ £

DFE/ESFA GRANTS

GAG 8,043,158 8,043,158
Exceptional government funding 178,141 178,141
Other DFE/ESFA Grants 969,786 969,786
Local Authority Grants - 660,457, 660,457
TOTAL 2020 9,851,542 9,851,542
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

FUNDING FOR ACADEMY'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Restricted Total
funds funds
2019 2019
£ £

DFE/ESFA GRANTS
GAG 7,854,110 7,854,110
Other DFE/ESFA Grants 644,010 644,010
Local Authority Grants 618,172 618,172

TOTAL 2019 9,116,292

9,116,292

The academy trust has been eligible to claim additional funding in year from government support schemes
in response to the coronavirus outbreak. The funding received is shown above under “"exceptional

government funding™:

- The funding received for coronavirus exceptional support covers £125k of Free School Meal
(FSM) vouchers purchased through the government's centrally organised scheme. These costs are

included in note 7; 8 and 9 below as appropriate.

- The academy furloughed some of its catering staff under the government's CIRS. The funding
received of £53k relates to staff costs in respect of these staff which are included within note 11

below as appropriate.

OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES

Unrestricted Total

funds funds

2020 2020

£ £

Letting of premises 2,330 2,330
FSM income 68,395 68,395
Other activities for generating funds 107,383 107,383
Catering Sales 208,717 208,717
Income from trading subsidiary 83,577 83,577
470,402

TOTAL 2020 470,402

Note that within the income from trading subsidiary is amounts of £14,636 for where the Sports Complex
furloughed some of its Sports Centre staff under the government's CJRS. The funding received relates to
staff costs in respect of these staff which are included within note 11 below as appropriate.
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OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

Letting of premises

FSM income

Other activities for generating funds
Catering Sales

Income from trading subsidiary

TOTAL 2019

INVESTMENT INCOME

Bank interest

Bank interest

Unrestricted Total
funds funds

2019 2019

£ £

3,391 3,391
93,267 93,267
77,101 77,101
299,701 299,701
160,788 160,788
634,248 634,248
Unrestricted Total
funds funds

2020 2020

£ £

13,914 13,914
Unrestricted Total
funds funds

2019 2019

£ £

21,751 21,751
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

EXPENDITURE

FUNDING FOR EDUCATIONAL
OPERATIONS:

Direct costs
Allocated support costs

FUNDING FOR EDUCATIONAL
OPERATIONS:

Direct costs
Allocated support costs

ANALYSIS OF EXPENDITURE ON CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES

Summary by fund type

Funding for educational operations

Funding for educational operations

10,232,120

Staff Costs Premises Other Total
2020 2020 2020 2020

£ £ £ £
7,226,756 707,285 609,822 8,543,863
1,621,225 402,741 692,965 2,616,931
8,747,981 1,110,026 1,302,787 11,160,794
Staff Costs Premises Other Total
2019 2019 2019 2019

£ £ £ £
‘6,637,860 729,468 767,190 8,134,518
1,619,327 406,007 643,265 2,668,599
Unrestricted  Restricted Total

funds funds funds

2020 2020 2020

£ £ £

512,297 10,648,496 11,160,793

Unrestricted Restricted Total

funds funds funds

2019 2019 2019

£ £ £

570,997

10,803,117
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

®

ANALYSIS OF EXPENDITURE BY ACTIVITIES

Funding for educational operations

Funding for educational operations

Analysis of direct costs

Staff costs
Depreciation
Technology costs
Educational supplies
Examination fees
Staff development
Other direct costs

TOTAL 2020

Analysis of support costs

Activities
undertaken Support Total
directly costs funds
2020 2020 2020
£ £ £
8,543,863 2,616,931 11,160,794

Activities
undertaken Support Total
directly costs funds
2019 2019 2019
£ £ £
8,134,518 2,668,599 10,803,117
Total
funds
2020
£
7,226,756
707,285
72,334
354,173
95,483
23,683
64,148
8,543,863
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

10.

ANALYSIS OF EXPENDITURE BY ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

Analysis of support costs (continued)

Staff costs

Maintenance of premises and equipment
Cleaning

Rent and rates

Energy costs

Insurance

Security and transport
Catering

Other support costs
Governance costs

FSM vouchers (Covid-19)

TOTAL 2020

Included above within the above are legal fees of £1,050(2019: £1,750).

NET EXPENDITURE

Net expenditure for the year includes:

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Fees paid to auditor for: !

Auditor's remuneration
Non-audit fees

Total
funds
2020
£

1,521,226
129,204
36,210
33,449
163,647
35,064
5,167
204,884
273,399
94,849
119,833

2,616,931

2020 2019

£

707,288

10,600
3,330

£
729,467

10,700
3,165
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

1.

STAFF

a. STAFF COSTS

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs

Agency staff costs
Staff restructuring costs

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

Severance payments

Group Group Academy Academy
2020 2019 2020 2019

£ £ £ £
6,342,966 6,103,973 6,285,738 6,046,946
576,929 554,568 576,929 554,568
1,780,134 1,577,330 1,780,134 1,677,330
8,700,029 8,235,871 8,642,801 8,178,844
1,705 7,783 1,705 7,783
46,247 13,633 46,247 13,5633
8,747,981 8,257,187 8,690,753 8,200,160
Group Group Academy Academy
2020 2019 2020 2019

£ £ £ £

46,247 13,633 46,247 13,633
46,247 13,5633 46,247 13,533

b. NON-STATUTORY/NON-CONTRACTUAL STAFF SEVERANCE PAYMENTS

Included in staff restructuring costs are non-statutory/non-contractual severance payments totalling

£35,844 (2019: £NIL). Individually, the payments were: £10,844 and £25,000.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

1.

12,

STAFF (CONTINUED)
c. STAFF NUMBERS

The average number of persons employed by the Group and the academy during the year was as
follows:

Group Group

2020 2019

No. No.

Leadership 11 11
Teachers - ‘ 98 97
Administration and support 140 137

249 245

d. HIGHER PAID STAFF

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded
£60,000 was:

Group Group

2020 2019

No. No.

In the band £60,001 - £70,000 2 2

In the band £70,001 - £80,000 2 4
in the band £80,001 - £90,000 2 -

In the band £130,001 - £140,000 - 1

In the band £140,001 - £150,000 1 -

e. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The key management personnel of the academy comprise the Governors and the senior management
team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension
contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for
their services to the academy was £1,036,421 (2019 £905,944).

GOVERNORS' REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES

One or more Governors has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment
with the academy. The principal and other staff Governors only receive remuneration in respect of
services they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of
employment. The value of Governors' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

2020 2019
£ £
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
." FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

12. GOVERNORS' REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES (CONTINUED)
Ms R Phillips (principal and trustee) Remuneration

bension contributions paid

Mr G Simpson (staff trustee) Remuneration

Pension contributions paid

Mr A Smith (staff trustee) Remuneration

Pension contributions paid

140,000 -
145,000
30,000 -
35,000
30,000 -
35,000
0 - 5,000
65,000 -
70,000
15,000 -
20,000

135,000-
140,000
20,000-

25,000
25,000-
30,000
0-5,000
60,000-
65,000
10,000-
15,000

During the year ended 31 August 2020, expenses totalling £35 were reimbursed or paid directly to 1
Governor (2019 - £NIL to no Governors). The expense was in relation to an online safeguarding course.

13. GOVERNORS’ AND OFFICERS' INSURANCE

Insurance cover is held with Zurich which covers the whole school, with no separate amounts identifiable
for governors. The total cost for the year ended 31 August 2020 was £29,218 (2019 - £22,728).

14. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

GROUP

Freehold Land & Fixtures & Plant and

property Buildings Fittings Equipment Total

£ £ £ £ £

COST OR VALUATION
At 1 September 2019 27,100,000 _ 2,650,000 311,587 1,412,701 - 31,474,288
Additions - - 319,331 17,353 336,684
At 31 August 2020 27,100,000 2,650,000 630,918 1,430,054 31,810,972
DEPRECIATION
At 1 September 2019 3,182,000 454,583 213,578 1,322,215 5,172,376
Charge for the year 516,000 66,250 55,843 69,193 707,286
At 31 August 2020 3,698,000 520,833 269,421 1,391,408 5,879,662
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

14,

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

GROUP (CONTINUED)

NET BOOK VALUE

At 31 Au_gust 2020

At 31 August 2019

ACADEMY

COST OR VALUATION
At 1 September 2019
Additions

At 31 August 2020
DEPRECIATION

At 1 September 2019
Charge for the year

At 31 August 2020

NET BOOK VALUE

At 31 August 2020

At 31 August 2019

Freehold Land & Fixtures & Plant and
property Buildings Fittings Equipment Total
£ £ £ £ £
23,402,000 2,129,167 361,497 38,646 25,931,310
23,918,000 2,195,417 98,009 90,486 26,301,912
Furniture
Freehold and Motor
property  equipment vehicles Total
£ £ £ £
27,100,000 267,507 1,412,701 28,780,208
- 317,451 17,353 334,804
27,100,000 584,958 1,430,054 29,115,012
3,182,000 192,407 1,322,215 4,696,622
516,000 53,563 69,193 638,756
3,698,000 245,970 1,391,408 5,335,378
. 23,402,000 338,988 38,646 23,779,634
23,918,000 75,101 90,486 24,083,587
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

15. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS

academy

COST OR VALUATION
At 1 September 2019

AT 31 AUGUST 2020

16. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Unlisted
investments
£

The following was a subsidiary undertaking of the academy:

Name Company
number

Woodchurch High Sports Complex Limited 08110622

The financial results of the subsidiary for the year were:

Registered office or principal Holding
place of business

Carr Bridge Road, Wirral, 100%
Merseyside, CH49 7NG

Name Income Expenditure Profit/(Loss) Net assets
£ £ | Surplus/ £
(Deficit) for
the year
£
Woodchurch High Sports Complex 112,835 192,931 (80,096) 2,112,019
Limited
17. STOCKS
Group Group Academy Academy
2020 2019 2020 2019
£ £ £ £

Finished goods and goods for resale 7,036 4,990 7,036 4,990
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

18. DEBTORS

Group Group Academy Academy
2020 2019 2020 2019
£ £ £ £

DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
Trade debtors 11,660 6,990 11,659 6,989
Other debtors 345 259 343 259
Prepayments and accrued income 383,636 211,173 379,341 204,867
VAT recoverable 6,410 6,443 796 4,358
402,051 224,865 392,139 216,473
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED'31 AUGUST 2020

19.

20.

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR '

Amounts owed to group undertakings
Other taxation and social security
Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income.

Deferred income .
Deferred income at 1 September 2019
Resources deferred during the year
Amounts released from previous years

Deferred income at 31 August 2020

Group Group Academy Academy
2020 2019 2020 2019
£ £ £ £
- - 28,630 39,335
143,594 141,884 143,594 141,884
235,286 179,241 235,286 179,241
283,748 168,758 270,774 164,472
662,628 489,883 678,284 524,932
Group Group Company Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£ £ £ £
44,031 28,634 44,031 28,634
17,341 44,031 11,114 44,031
(44,031) (28,634) (44,031) (28,634)
17,341 44,031 11,114 44,031

Deferred income relates to LA SEN statement funding in 2020 & 2019, and an amount for business rates

in 2019.

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

Other creditors

Group
2020
£

261,577

Other creditors relates to a sinking fund to maintain the Sports Complex facilities.

Group
2019
£

247,957
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

21,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Financial assets measured at amortised cost

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost

Group
2020

3,073,777

Group
2020
£

645,286

Group
2019
£

2,859,229

Group
2019
£

445,852

Academy
2020
£

2,874,616

Academy
2020
£

667,169

Academy
2019
£

2,677,401

Academy
2019
£

480,901

Financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise cash, trade debtors, other debtors and accrued

income.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost comprise amounts owed to group undertakings, accruals

and other creditors.
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22,

STATEMENT OF FUNDS

UNRESTRICTE
D FUNDS

General Funds -
all funds

Sports Complex
land & Building
Reserve

RESTRICTED

GENERAL

FUNDS .
General Annual
Grant (GAG)

Pupil Premlum &
LAC

Year 7 Catch Up
SEN

Capital reserve
Other

Pension reserve

RESTRICTED
FIXED ASSET
FUNDS

Class |l
Restricted Funds
- all funds

Devolved
Formula Capital
(DFC)

TOTAL
RESTRICTED
FUNDS

Balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2019 Income Expenditure inlout (Losses) 2020
N X £ £ £ £ £
1,186,654 485,288 (446,047) - - 1,225,895
2,195,417 - (66,250) - - 2,129,167
3,382,071 485,288 (512,297) - - 3,355,062
303,765 8,043,159  (7,634,310) (377,568) - 335,046

- 607,147 (607,147) - - -

- 38,268 (38,268) - - -

- 578,798 (578,798) - - -
656,711 - - (6,955) - 649,756
123,444 584,170 .(659,218) 77,568 - 125,964
(6,864,000) - (492,000) - 332,000 (7,024,000)
(5,780,080) 9,851,542 (10,009,741) (306,955) 332,000 (5,913,234)
24,083,590 - (638,755) 334,799 - 23,779,634

- 27,844 - (27,844) - y
24,083,590 27,844 (638,755) 306,955 - 23,779,634
18,303,510 9,879,386 (10,648,496) - 332,000 17,866,400
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

22,

STATEMENT OF FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Balance at 1 Balance at

September Transfers Gains/ 31 August

2019 Income Expenditure in/out (Losses) 2020

£ £ £ £ £ £

TOTAL FUNDS 21,685,581 10,364,674 (11,160,793) - 332,000 21,221,462

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Restricted General Funds are used specifically to provide educational resources for the pupils of the
Academy. To better represent the specific uses of the funds, other restricted funds from the prior year
have been reclassified as farm grants, maternity and paternity, and redundancy funds in the year.

Restricted Fixed Asset Funds provide for the installation, maintenance and repair of the fixed assets of the
Academy.

Unrestricted Funds are those other resources which maybe used to further the objective of the Academy.
£261,577 (2019: £247,957) of the Unrestricted Fund relates to a sinking fund to maintain the Sports
Complex facilities.

The Governors require a capital reserve to be created to fund future capital expenditure, These are met '
via transfers from GAG funding or funded via unrestricted reserves. The academy holds assets to fund
planned capital expenditure over the next three years.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy was no subject to a limited on the
amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2020,

ACADEMY

Restricted fund and restricted fixed asset funds for the Academy are the same as for the Group disclosed
above. Unrestricted funds for the Academy are £1,241,596 (2019 - £1,189,957). The unrestricted surplus
for the Academy was £82,786 (2019 - £141,165).

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the academy was not subject to a limit on the
amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2020.

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

22.

STATEMENT OF FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

" UNRESTRICTE

D FUNDS

General Funds -
all funds

Reserves

RESTRICTED
GENERAL
FUNDS

General Annual
Grant (GAG)

Pupil Premium &
LAC

Year 7 Catch Up
SEN

Capital reserve
Other

Pension reserve

RESTRICTED
FIXED ASSET
FUNDS

Assets inherited
on conversion

Devolved
Formula Capital
(DFC)

Balance at Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2018 Income Expenditure in/out (Losses) 2019
£ £ ' £ £ £ £
1,131,460 661,655 (504,747) (101,714) - 1,186,654
2,261,667 - (66,250) - - 2,195,417
3,393,127 661,655 (5670,997) (101,714) - 3,382,071
365,722 7,854,110  (7,716,067) (200,000) - 303,765
(9,041) 592,441 (583,400) - - -
- 36,604 (36,604) - - -
- 549,832 (549,832) - - -
284,893 - - 371,818 - 656,711
121,730 79,345 (79,345) 1,714 - 123,444
(4,134,000) - (608,000) - (2,122,000) (6,864,000)
(3,370,696) 9,112,332  (9,573,248) 173,632  (2,122,000) (5,780,080)
24,715,116 - (658,872) 27,346 - 24,083,590
- 99,164 - (99,164) - -
24,715,116 99,164 (658,872) (71,818) - 24,083,590
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

22, STATEMENT OF FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Balance at Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2018 Income  Expenditure infout (Losses) 2019
£ £ £ £ £ £
TOTAL
RESTRICTED
FUNDS 21,344,420 9,211,496 (10,232,120) 101,714  (2,122,000) 18,303,510
TOTAL FUNDS 24,737,547 9,873,151 (10,803,117) - (2,122,000) 21,685,581
23. ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS
ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS - CURRENT PERIOD
Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds. funds funds funds
2020 2020 2020 2020
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets 2,151,675 - 23,779,634 25,931,309
Current assets ’ 2,127,592 1,110,766 - 3,238,358
Creditors due within one year (662,628) - - (662,628)
Creditors due in more than one year (261,577) - - (261,577)
Provisions for liabilities and charges . - (7,024,000) - (7,024,000)
TOTAL

3,355,062  (5,913,234)

23,779,634

21,221,462
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NOTES TO THE-FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

23. ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS (CONTINUED)

ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS - PRIOR PERIOD

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted  fixed asset Total
‘funds funds funds funds
2019 2019 2019 2019
£ £ £ £
Tangigle fixed assets ' 2;218,322 - 24,083,590 26,301,912
Current assets 1,901,589 1,083,920 - 2,985,509
Creditors due within one year (489,883) - - (489,883)
Creditors due in more than one year (247,957) - - (247,957)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - (6,864,000) - (6,864,000)

TOTAL 3,382,071  (5,780,080) 24,083,590 21,685,581

24. RECONCILIATION OF NET EXPENDITURE TO NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2020 2019
£ £
Net expenditure for the period (as per Statement of financial activities) (796,119) (929,966)
ADJUSTMENTS FOR:
Depreciation charges 707,288 729,467
Dividends, interest and rents from investments (13,914) (21,751)
Decrease/ (increase) in stocks (2,046) 69
(Increase)/decrease in debtors (177,187) (4,123)
(Decrease)/ increase in creditors 186,364 (13,311)
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (27,844) (99,164)
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 361,000 490,000
Pension adjustments 131,000 118,000
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 368,542 269,221
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

25. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Group Group
2020 2019
£ £
Dividends, interest and rents from investments 13,914 21,751
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (336,683) (161,019)
Capital grants from DFE 27,844 99,764
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (294,925) (40,104)
26. ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Group Group
2020 2019
£ £
Cash in hand 2,829,271 2,755,654
TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,829,271 2,755,654
27. ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET DEBT
At1
September At 31
2019 Cash flows August 2020
. £ £ £
Cash at bank and in hand 2,755,654 73,617 2,829,271

2,755,654 73,617 2,829,271

28. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

On 26 October 2018 the lligh Court rulcd that cqualisation for the effect of unequal Guaranteed Minimum
Pensions (GMPs) is required. The ruling confirmed that trustees have a duty to "equalise benefits for men
and women so as to alter the resuilt which is at present produced in relation to GMPs". Full GMP
indexation will be applied to the LGPS pension liability once changes to the LGPS have been formally
announced.
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- NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
* FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

29.

30.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

o~

Group Group Academy Academy
2020 2019 2020 2019
' £ £ £ £
CONTRACTED FOR BUT NOT.PROVIDED
IN THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Acquisition of tangible fixed assets 159,902 - 159,902 -

PENSION COMMITMENTS

The academy's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for non- teachlng staff, which is managed by Mercers. Both are multi-employer defined benefit
schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31
March 2016.

Contributions amounting to £108,617 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2020 (2019 - £82,247)
and are included within creditors.

TEACHERS' PENSION SCHEME

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in
academles All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS. following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of. salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

30.

PENSION COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
VALUATION OF THE TEACHERS' PENSION SCHEME

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs,
design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at
31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Deparntment for Education on 5 March 2019.
The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

. employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration
levy)
. total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for

service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a
notional past service deficit of £22,000 million

. the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI, assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices
and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.
The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £923,738 (2019 - £620,242).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website
(https://www teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2019/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
Group has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The
Group has set out above the information available on the scheme.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2020 was £621,000 (2019 -
£594,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £494,000 (2019 - £474,000) and employees'
contributions totalled £ 127,000 (2079 - £120,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 17.3
per cent for employers and 5.5 to 12.5 per cent for employees.

As described in note the LGPS obligation relates to the employees of the academy, who were the
employees transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained school and new employees who
were eligible to, and did, join the Scheme in the year. The obligation in respect of employees who
transferred on conversion represents their cumulative service at both the predecessor school and the
academy at the balance sheet date.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

30.

PENSION COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
Principal actuarial assumptions

Merseyside Pension Fund

2020 2019

% %

Discount rate for scheme liabilities 1.8 1.8
Rate of increase in salaries 3.9 3.6
Rate of increase for pensions in payment / inflation 25 2.2
Inflation assumption (CPI) - 2.5 2.1

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2020 2019
Years Years

Retiring today
Males ' 20.9 22.2
Females 24 25
Retiring in 20 years
Male:;; 225 25.2
Females 25.9 27.9
Sensitivity analysis
Merseyside Pension Fund vv

2020 2019

£000 £000
Discount rate +0.1% (6,783,000) (6,614,000)
Mortality assumption - 1 year increase , (7,401,000) (7,082,000)
CPl rate +0.1% (7,269,000) (7,720,000)

Pay growth +0.1% (7,064,000) (6,978,000)

Share of scheme assets
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

30. PENSION COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Group's share of the assets in the scheme was:

2020 2019

£ £

Equities 2,828,000 2,656,000
Government bonds 145,000 530,000
Other bonds 801,000 286,000
Property 523,000 468,000
Cash and other liquid assets 314,000 166,000
Other 1,196,000 1,092,000

Total market value of assets 5,807,000 5,198,000

The actual return on scheme assets was £(32,000) (2019 - £227,000).

The amounts recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities are as follows:

2020 2019
£ £
Expected return on scheme assets ‘ - (133,000)
Interest on obligation 120,000 241,000
Current service charge 843,000 611,000
Past service charge 12,000 353,000
Admin expenses 11,000 10,000
Total amount recognised in the consolidated statement of financial :
activities 986,000 1,082,000
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:
2020 2019
£ £
At 1 September ;12,062,000 8,655,000
Interest cost 218,000 241,000
Employee contributions 127,000 120,000
Actuarial (gains)/losses (303,000) 2,215,000
Benefits paid (128,000) (133,000)
Current service costs 843,000 611,000
Past service costs 12,000 353,000

At 31 August 12,831,000 12,062,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
" FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

30. PENSION COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

Changes in the fair value of the Group's share of scheme assets were as follows:

2020 2019

£ £

At 1 September 5,198,000 4,521,000
Expected return on assets 98,000 133,000
Actuarial gains 29,000 93,000
Employee contributions 127,000 120,000
Benefits paid (128,000) (133,000)
Employer contributions 494,000 474,000
Admin expenses (11,000) (10,000)
At 31 August 5,807,000 5,198,000

31. MEMBERS' LIABILITY

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted
before he/she ceases to be a member.

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Owing to the nature of the academy and the composition of the Board of Governors being drawn from
local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the
governors have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance
with the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all
transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the
academy's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related
party transactions.

In the year 2019/20 there was £2,711 (2019: £5,760) of income received from Liverpool Hope University
where S Cronin, the Head of School from 11 November 2016, is also a governor of the Academy.

£5,475 (2019: £9,610) was received from Chester University where D Cumberland, a governor, is the
Deputy Dean in the Faculty of Education and Children Services. Income received was for the mentoring
of associate teachers studying at the universities.

During the year, the academy paid £1,525 (2019: £1,425) to Chester Diocesan Board of Education where
L Bannon, the assistant Headteacher, is a trustee.
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